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MOUNTIES GROUP LIFE MEMBERS
We honour the following members who hold life membership in recognition of their service to our club.
LIFE MEMBERS
1969 - 1970

Edward Thirkill*

1982 - 1983

Clive Edwards*

1987 - 1988

Terry Jackson*

2002 - 2003

Donald Hocking*

1970 - 1971

Terry White*

1982 - 1983

Harry Turner*

1988 - 1989

Ray Pugsley

2005 - 2006

Ron Evans*

1972 - 1973

Stanley Jacobs*

1982 - 1983

Robert Ryan

1996 - 1997

Kevin Ingram

2005 - 2006

Steve Fitzpatrick

1975 - 1976

Mervyn Pell*

1983 - 1984

Stewart Craig*

1996 - 1997

Daryll Cook*

2008 - 2009

John Dean

1977 - 1978

Edwin (Ted) Savage

1983 - 1984

Cecil Smith*

1996 - 1997

Vic Smith

2008 - 2009

Robin Gould

1978 - 1979

Michael Dubois*

1985 - 1986

Jack Summons*

1996 - 1997

Allan McGlynn

2008 - 2009

John Araco

1978 - 1979

John Whiteley*

1985 - 1986

Enid Smith*

1996 - 1997

Judith O'Brien*

2011 - 2012

Marilyn Price

1978 - 1979

Mrs M McAuliffe *

1985 - 1986

Eva Moore*

1996 - 1997

Kath Whiteley

2011 - 2012

John Baron

1980 - 1981

Ethel Murphy*

1986 - 1987

Charlie Lee*

1999 - 2000

Tom Murphy

2014 - 2015

Stephen Edwards

1980 - 1981

John Cather*

1986 - 1987

Athol Madgwick*

1999 - 2000

Doreen Brand*

1981 - 1982

Keith Edwards*

1987 - 1988

Robert Penning

2001 - 2002

Don Wilson

Deceased*

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Back row (left to right): Stephen Edwards, Trevor Forman, Leon Hansen, Marilyn Price, Jeanette McNevin,
Tom Murphy, Lorraine Dean, William McGrory
Front row (left to right): Steve Fitzpatrick (Vice President), Kevin Ingram (President), John Dean (Vice President & Treasurer)

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Mounties Group 2015/16 Annual Report provides a
comprehensive account of the Group’s performance
from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016. This publication
reflects our commitment to improving member equity, to
serving our community and to enhancing the working life
of our employees.
Following on from the Club’s program of amalgamation
in the last couple of years, the Group set on further
expansion in 2015/2016. This report details the ambitious,
state-of-the art and community-first developments that,
upon completion, will reinforce the Group’s position as an
industry leader.
Finally, the Annual Report 2015/2016 meets with our
commitment to transparent performance reporting,
good corporate governance and a well-planned and
prosperous future.
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OUR CLUBS
MOUNTIES
The jewel in the Group’s crown and the founding
club of Mounties Group, Mounties boasts the largest
membership of any club in NSW. Its grand new
entrance was unveiled in December 2015 and since
then, the improvements have kept coming in line with
its ambitious masterplan.
HARBORD DIGGERS
Occupying the most enviable of positions on the
northern beaches peninsular, the Diggers as it is
affectionately known, is on its way to being redeveloped
into Australia’s first intergenerational club. This year saw
the launch of the multi-million dollar “temp club” which
has given Members a welcomed sneak peak of what to
expect from the new club.
MANLY BOWLING CLUB
Our sister club on the northern beaches is treasured
by locals for its laid back, relaxed atmosphere.
Popular for its summer-time bowls, great-value eats
and beautiful view overlooking the historic Manly Oval.
MOUNTIES BOWLING CLUB
Mounties Bowling prides itself on being the friendliest
club in the south west. Whether it be great dining,
bowls, entertainment or Futsal, Mounties BC has
plenty to offer.
CLUB ITALIA
The team at Club Italia carries on the dream of the
Italian migrants who established this club over 40
years ago. It remains a bastion for Italian culture which
is shared with the wider community.
MEKONG
Popular amongst Sydney’s Vietnamese community,
Mekong is set amongst the bustling streets of
Cabramatta. Like some of its fellow clubs, it too
has undergone refurbishment, with its facelift to be
completed in 2016.
TRIGLAV
Dining, entertainment, school holiday activities,
promotions, special events... Triglav has it all! This
little gem tucked away in St Johns Park was recently
refurbished and continues to be a hit in the local
community – especially with young families.
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OUR HOLIDAY RESORTS
MOUNTIES @ SUSSEX
Situated right on the waterfront of Sussex Inlet and
conveniently located within walking distance to clubs,
shops and restaurants, Mounties @ Sussex offers
Mounties Group members cost-effective getaways and
fun-filled family adventures.
KOOLOORA LODGE
Great for skiers and snowboarders alike, Mounties Group
members enjoy special rates and accommodation deals
at Kooloora Lodge. Perched just 800m from the lifts and
with breakfast and dinner included, Kooloora is the most
popular club lodge in Perisher Valley.
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OUR PEOPLE
•

554 employees Group-wide

•

60 employees recognised for a combined
total of 580 years of service

•

146 new starters

•

39 languages spoken

•

808,609 hours worked

•

80% permanent full-time and part-time
employees, 20% casuals

•

56% female

•

15,484 hours of training delivered
(total investment over $380,000)

With seven registered clubs, a fitness centre and
two holiday resorts, Mounties Group relies on a large
workforce that has a continual focus on the SPARK
performance objectives: Service, Professionalism,
Appearance, Respect and Knowledge.
As one of the largest employers in each of the local
government areas where our clubs are located,
Mounties Group works with local schools, TAFE and
support agencies to provide work experience, work
placement and job trials for those looking for work or to
return to work.
In 2015/16 more than $380,000 was committed to
the training of Mounties Group staff; a testament to the
group’s investment in its people and culture.
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CLUB’S PROGRESS AT A GLANCE
YEAR

NO. MEMBERS

GROSS REVENUE

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

INVESTMENTS

MEMBERS EQUITY

EQUITY
PER MEMBER

2016

105,015

689,684,228

276,932,518

38,234,715

7,538,552

238,697,803

2,273

2015

104,956

584,672,586

256,973,099

17,906,306

16,251,750

239,066,793

2,278

2014

106,849

493,262,583

250,886,705

17,430,492

13,830,798

233,456,213

2,185

2013

108,114

435,960,287

242,834,614

18,091,562

7,229,040

224,743,062

2,079

2012

105,574

438,442,613

230,849,006

14,269,786

37,486,651

216,579,254

2,051

2011

104,136

391,438,675

220,552,777

13,452,852

26,703,918

207,099,925

1,989

2010

103,639

352,580,053

212,895,264

14,029,104

24,460,915

198,866,160

1,919

2009

99,925

342,877,227

209,064,065

14,906,301

22,020,865

194,157,764

1,943

2008

94,505

322,233,574

199,086,561

15,210,120

24,170,000

183,876,441

1,946

2007

94,597

331,118,057

195,157,034

17,740,617

26,164,703

177,416,417

1,875

2006

82,949

291,938,051

189,284,877

18,315,705

25,758,169

170,969,172

2,061

2005

67,676

268,590,382

131,523,972

10,686,670

42,036,349

120,837,302

1,786

2004

66,544

230,470,480

109,874,597

7,772,391

36,500,000

102,102,206

1,534

2003

64,999

189,943,144

95,336,020

7,414,288

26,550,000

87,921,732

1,353

2002

60,516

157,316,645

85,243,204

9,117,844

19,750,000

76,125,360

1,258

2001

57,964

131,864,083

74,018,488

7,919,527

14,835,740

66,098,961

1,140

2000

38,110

118,990,523

64,969,108

5,377,643

10,143,772

59,591,465

1,564

1999

41,829

107,963,620

60,412,442

5,653,519

6,274,019

54,758,923

1,309

1998

38,044

87,503,031

49,733,021

3,848,108

265,255

45,884,913

1,206

1997

34,327

71,319,118

43,625,522

3,447,893

2,771,315

40,177,629

1,170

1996

32,528

69,431,193

37,068,953

2,562,973

9,077,575

34,505,980

1,061

1995

28,730

67,075,259

29,463,266

3,071,239

4,283,835

26,392,027

919

1994

22,651

48,397,341

21,974,299

2,305,170

1,300,105

19,669,129

868

1993

17,095

38,471,739

18,885,165

2,107,982

2,082,746

16,777,183

981

1992

16,954

35,007,001

16,988,357

1,691,127

883,070

15,297,230

902

GROWTH

Total Assets
Members
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2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

1996

1995

1994

1993

Gross Revenue

SOURCE & APPLICATION OF FUNDS
SOURCE OF FUNDS

Gaming Machines

SOURCE OF FUNDS OTHER ACTIVITIES

Bars
Other
Keno & Tab
Member Loyalty & Gift Shop

Other Activities

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Direct

Indirect

Catering
Entertainment & Raffles
Memberships

Fitness Centres
Resorts
Memberships

APPLICATION OF FUNDS DIRECT

Gaming Machines

APPLICATION OF FUNDS DIRECT OTHER ACTIVITIES

Bar
Member Loyalty & Gift Shop
Resorts

Catering & Booking Fees
Entertainment & Raffles
Interest

Fitness Centre
Keno & TAB
Wagering

Other Activities

APPLICATION OF FUNDS INDIRECT

Depreciation & Property Costs
Club Services
Advertising & Promotion

Administration & Staff on Cost
Community Support Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance

MOUNTIES GROUP 2016 ANNUAL REPORT -

11

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
If 2014/15 was the year to develop plans, then I can
report 2015/16 as being the year that the plans have
well and truly swung into action. The Board and senior
management have been charged with executing two of
the biggest developments in club history and balancing
this against a measured and consolidated approach in
our day-to-day business.
The Group’s profit this year has been tempered by the
necessary approach in consolidating the Group and its
online gaming business, Betting.Club. Our investment
in the online environment is a strategy for protecting our
current business sustainability and to take advantage
of technology advances which, alongside our bricks
and mortar assets, increase the diversity of our revenue
streams. This business is now established and is forecast
to have a positive contribution within two years.
The other abnormal impact on this year’s profit was a
further $5.1m for the writing off of assets relating to the
partial demolition of the Harbord Diggers building.
Despite a more conservative profit than in recent years,
Mounties Group has bolstered its support of the local
community to record levels in this financial year. Our
support of community groups, local services and charities
is at the very core of our business, and I am delighted to
report that we were able to support the community to the
value of $5.6m in 2015/16 including capital contributions
and statewide funding.
Recognising the importance of sport, recreation and
health, $3.4m – or 61 per cent – of our community
contribution was channelled towards our sub clubs,
sporting groups and the maintenance of local sporting
fields.
Much of the success relies on group-wide performance
and I am pleased to report that the three largest western
clubs, Mounties, Triglav and Mekong, performed
particularly well, recording record profit and EBITARD
returns on revenue.
At Mt Pritchard, we have delivered a grand entrance to the
Club from Humphries Road as one of the first stages in
a $200m, seven-year masterplan. A brand new Member
Services office was also unveiled and at the writing of this
report, the new Terrace Bar & Café that, along with its
adjoining outdoor deck, will be the most popular corner
at Mounties when it is fully completed in late 2016.
The progress at Harbord Diggers has been going at a
rapid pace. Over 230,000 tonnes of sandstone have
been removed from the site. We sold 70 per cent of the
retirement living units in the first five months, making this
the fastest selling retirement development in Australia.
In the meantime, the temporary Harbord Diggers is well
worth a visit if you are yet to see it. Launched in April, it
is the perfect bridge between Diggers’ heritage and the
luminous future promised by the future club.
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With two major developments and soft refurbishments
taking place at Triglav and Mekong, I would like to thank
members for their continued support and patience during
the process of improving our facilities.
To achieve such strong results and have solid plans
for the future is made possible by the dedication and
passion of our board, our executive team and our staff.
We continue to boast a highly motivated workforce and
together with the direction of CEO Greg Pickering, we
can be assured the club is in good hands.
I would also like to thank my colleagues on the Board and
our advisory committees for their continued support and
their enduring dedication to our vision.
Finally, congratulations to all of our sporting teams who
continue to do us proud with their achievements.

KEVIN INGRAM
President
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YOUR CLUB IN NUMBERS
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A WORD FROM OUR CEO
Welcome to my report for 2016.
2016 saw a number of our planned initiatives come into
being. It has been a year which will be remembered for
the commencement of major developments along with a
full year of trading for our online company (Betting.Club).
Betting.Club is Australia’s only community-owned
wagering and sports betting company. About five years
ago Mounties Group’s Strategic Plan recognised the need
to diversify into relevant businesses, and to develop an
online presence that would be beneficial to the club going
forward. Many would be aware of the unchecked growth
of online gaming and the need for us to develop our own
position in that market. The erosion of the asset that is
the club industry, and more importantly, to Mounties,
cannot continue. As a consequence Mounties Group has
pursued this avenue.
This financial report deals with Mounties Group’s share
of the significant start-up costs of Betting.Club. The
success of Betting.Club is dependant on growth of the
customer base and recently the company has announced
partnerships with two industry associations, designed to
achieve that end. It should be noted that budgets have
been approved for the business to be operating with
improved profitability by the end of 2017 and a positive
contribution by 2018.
Members would also be aware that development is
underway at a number of premises with major building
works at Mounties and Harbord Diggers, as well as
extensive refurbishment work at Mekong and Triglav.
These projects have had an impact on the financial result
for 2016, and will be more fully explained in this report.
CONSOLIDATED REPORT
This year a consolidated report is being presented due
to Mounties Group having increased its equity position
in Betting.Club in September 2015, and becoming the
controlling entity of that company. The impact of the
consolidation has been the requirement to account for
the past losses of the entity since its inception in 2012.
Our share of these have been brought to account in this
financial year.
From a financial viewpoint, the highlights of 2016
have been:
• Revenue $129.3m: a solid increase of $7.4m (6.1%)
from last year (2015 - $122m) and a record for the
club. The closure of Freshwater Fitness in September
2015, and the resulting drop in revenue makes this
result all the more remarkable.
• Costs $65.8m: $3.6m decrease over last year (2015 $69.4m) including a $5.2m write down of the value of
the partially demolished building at Harbord Diggers.
• Community Support $5.6m: Our increased revenue
has meant that Mounties Group has been able
to contribute almost $570k more than last year
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(2015 - $5m) into our community support budget.
This is detailed later in Community Grants report.
• Continuing strong performance of Mekong and
Triglav with uplifts in EBITDARD of $0.74m and
$0.69m respectively.
• General and Administrative Costs increased by
$11.4m over the previous year. When the costs
associated with Betting.Club are considered the
increase is an acceptable (2.3%).
• Impairment Loss $3.5m: Represents a portion of
the inter company loan to Betting.Club. The Board
have considered that this may be impaired, and have
agreed to write the amount off.
PROFIT
• Profit (after Tax) for the Parent was $6,345,815, this is
$735,235 more than last year (2015 - $5,610,580)
º Includes Mounties Group’s share of operational
funding of Betting.Club ($4.48m) for this year.
• Profit (after Tax) for the Group was $3,279,313
(2015 - $5,610,580)
º Includes Mounties Group’s share of losses
written off for Betting.Club ($3.07m) since its
inception in 2012
• Total Profit (after Tax) was $2,038,645
º Includes costs associated with the minority
interests of Betting.Club of $1,240,668

BALANCE SHEET

2016

2015

$38,234,715

$17,906,306

$238,697,803

$239,066,793

The operating result has improved members’ equity as
follows:
Total Assets
$276,932,518 $256,973,099
Total Liabilities
Retained Equity

The key factors to note here are:
• Increase in Total Assets - $19.96m
º Due to a significant capital expenditure program
which has been offset by the liquidation of most
of our investments, and the partial write down of
the Harbord buildings.
• Increase in Total Liabilities - $20.33m
º Includes term debt associated with
the Harbord Project - $11.83m, and
º Increase in Trade and Other Payables
for Capital Works - $7.54m, and
º Interest Rate Hedge Liability relating to the
Harbord Development $1.03m, which was a
condition of the debt facility.

• Reduction in Total Members Equity – ($368,990)
º Includes Minority Interest losses for Betting.Club
– ($2.62m), and
º Hedging Interest Rate reserve – ($1.03m), and
Offset of $3.28m contribution from the Group.
CASH FLOWS
• Operating Activities
º Significant increase in receipts ($10.96m) and
payments ($11.54m)
º Resulting in a similar Net Cash Flow to last year
$22.0m (-$864,857)
• Investing Activities
º Cash used in investing activities up by $1.43m
º Capital Expenditure $40.13m (up by $19.94m)
º Sold down investment assets $15.7m (to fund
capital works)
The graph on page 10 of this report tracks Mounties
Group’s growth since 1992. It also depicts the value
equity at $2,637/member, a healthy increase over 2015.
AUDIT PROCESS
Our auditors complimented the professionalism and
leadership of our Finance team, under the capable
guidance of Ralph Wearne. The preparation of the
consolidated financial report this year has been a
challenging task, as you will no doubt glean from the
above explanation. The Board and management have
agreed that the consolidation of the accounts was the
most transparent way to present the report to members
this year. The auditors sign off, without qualification,
confirms another great result.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
For some time now clubs have been required to report on
governance matters associated with the running of the
club, the activities of the Board, and Senior Management.
A number of the disclosures that are required by the
Registered Clubs Act and Registered Clubs Regulation
have been duplicated in this report. The Secretary’s
Register is available for inspection after the AGM, on
written request.
NEIGHBOURS AND TRADING HOURS
We continue to work to provide an environment which is
safe, enjoyable, and free from negative impacts associated
with our operations. Our efforts have continued through
2016 and our neighbour relations program continues to
ensure that we can happily co-exist without affecting our
neighbours. We understand that construction at the levels
which are currently underway at a number of our sites,
have the potential to impact our neighbours, however we
will always plan to minimise this. I know there have been
some issues with construction at Harbord and I would like
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to take this opportunity to thank our neighbours, and the
community generally, for their patience and understanding
as we work to get the most intrusive works completed as
quickly as possible. Congratulations to our site General
Managers, Darren Marino, Dale Hunt, and Jason Woods
for their efforts in maintaining a great relationship with our
neighbours and the community during these difficult times.
SPORT
Sport is the fundamental cornerstone of Mounties Group
and will always be important the club.
Congratulations and thanks to the Sports Director
Lorraine Dean, her Sports Committee, Sports Club
Captain Dawn, and all of our sporting sub clubs, who
contribute so much to the Mounties community.
A particular thanks to all the volunteers who work to
ensure that our kids are able to enjoy their sport under
the Mounties banner. We couldn’t do it without you.
This year we lost an important part of our sporting team.
I would like to acknowledge the efforts of Debbie Groves
in making Mounties a better sport provider. We all miss
Debbie and acknowledge her efforts on your behalf.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is scheduled for
Sunday 30 October 2016. It will be conducted at
Mounties, and be video conferenced to Harbord Diggers.
The notice of meeting has been posted and contains the
resolutions proposed for the members consideration at
the meeting. You will notice these have been structured
slightly differently this year in order to improve the
functionality of the meeting. If there are any questions, or
feedback as to the structure I would be happy to discuss
this with you.
As always the AGM is a great opportunity for members to
give feedback and that is welcomed then (or at any time).
I look forward to seeing you on 30 October at 10.00am.
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
You will recall that members approved changes to the
constitution in 2015 to facilitate a reduction of the number
of directors to nine. As a consequence, the election
that will be conducted in the lead up to the AGM will
be conducted in that vein. Voting will be conducted at
Mounties, and Harbord Diggers in the week before the
AGM. Please check the noticeboards, and the Mounties
website for the official notice, and take the time to be
involved in the future of your club by voting.

GENERAL OPERATIONS
Again our talented and committed people have delivered
a great result for the club and its members. We have 554
team members who are here to make your experience
at any part of the Mounties Group, that much more
pleasurable – please take advantage of what we have
to offer. Without your support none of our efforts would
amount to anything, so please take the time to encourage
our team for their efforts, it will be greatly appreciated.
Again, special thanks to General Managers Darren, Dale
and Jason for their efforts and commitment over the past
year.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
Having completed the upgrade of the impressive western
foyer and porte cochere earlier this year at Mounties, we
will continue with our masterplan into 2017. Our main
projects will include the opening of The Terrace Bar &
Café (September), a complete refurbishment of the
outdoor terrace (December), kids’ outdoor play area
(December), new Cantonese restaurant (December),
infrastructure projects to the southern side of the building
(early 2017), and commencement of a redevelopment of
the gaming floor (early 2017). Work on the construction of
the new car park will commence in June next year.
In the meantime, work is continuing on the Harbord
Diggers project, and when I sit down to write this report
next year, we will be well into planning for the opening of
the new club.
I am proud of the efforts of the team in 2016, and I
appreciate the responsibility that comes with providing
strong and secure employment for our people. They
work hard for you, and enjoy doing that.
In closing, a special thanks to President Kevin Ingram and
the Board of Directors for their policies, guidance and
for the encouragement they give me in leading this great
business.
We are almost a quarter of the way through FY2017 and
it will be a year that will continue to advance, and develop
the Mounties Group. Thank you for the part you have
played in our success.

Greg Pickering
Chief Executive Officer
20 September 2016
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MOUNTIES ON TRACK TO DELIVER
ITS BEST HOSPITALITY
EXPERIENCES YET
In the past two years, Mounties has delivered the first stages of an
ambitious project of redevelopment and upgraded facilities.
On 8 December 2015, Mounties unveiled the new Humphries Road
foyer and porte cochere, a spectacular state-of-the-art arrival zone, the
scale and sophistication of which is appropriate for the largest club in
South West Sydney. This zone includes the new Member Services area
where members and guests can get information about the club.
In 2016, Mounties commenced the redevelopment of the Terrace Bar &
Café. The new space will be an elegant setting of modern design where
patrons can feel comfortable lingering over their morning coffee, enjoy
a delicious lunch or dinner and maybe an evening drink. The completed
zone will include indoor and outdoor service points making it a versatile
space.
A full redevelopment of the Outdoor Terrace Deck is currently underway.
This space will feature undercover seating and a toddler play area plus
large screens for viewing your favourite sporting events. It will boast
large and colourful vegetation, water features and lantern lighting
making it a relaxing space to spend a summer’s day. It will be ready
from early December.
Your favourite Vietnamese restaurant, Bau Truong, is also undergoing
a soft refurbishment. There will be a larger area inside the building, and
air-conditioning will ensure that space is pleasant for dining. Automated
glass doors will open onto the Terrace for those that want to enjoy their
food outside on a warm balmy evening.
Adjacent to the Terrace Bar & Café, the dining precinct will be completed
with the introduction of a Cantonese restaurant, opening mid-December
2016. This 309 seat venue will feature live seafood tanks, a bar and full
amenities with private dining rooms. The introductory menu will offer
Yum Cha for lunch and dinner as well as late night dining options.
Fresh Café is also set for some refurbishment. There will be a children’s
playground outside with additional seating in that area. This project is
due to complete in early December. The playground area is located
opposite Minis and is conveniently accessible from the underground
carpark. This will be a welcome expansion of the area available for
families.
Commencing in March will be a brand new Members/Sport Bar. It will
feature a modern design, large screens for sports viewing and the latest
betting technology.
Thank you again for your patience as we continue to improve your club.
We will bring you more information about each exciting stage as we
move forward with the masterplan.
DARREN MARINO
General Manager - Mount Pritchard
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THE JOURNEY FROM
A REGISTERED CLUB TO
INTERGENERATIONAL HUB
The construction of the new Harbord Diggers is underway
and already achieving some amazing results for our members
across all of Mounties Group.
We said we were going to challenge the way people look at
Registered Clubs and we have done not only that, but people
have been so impressed that the results are already screaming
out as a fantastic success.
Before we turned the first sod of soil to begin building, our
Seniors Living apartments were already 70 per cent sold, our
childcare centre, our fitness centre and our aquatic centre were
already leased and the scientific research was already showing
the positive difference that our new look club is going to make
in people’s lives.
For the first time in the world, a registered club is leading the
way in intergenerational living; where people of all ages and all
walks of life can enjoy an amazing lifestyle venue, drink, play
and eat and then watch the dollars our members have spent
doing so, go to local groups and teams to improve lives in our
local community.
In Harbord Diggers, we have gone back to the original plans
of our club founders and created a true community hub, a
meeting place, a watering hole. We have created a place
where old mates catch up and new friendships are formed. We
are building a venue where everyone in our community feels
welcome and a part of the Mounties Group family. Community is
the cornerstone of our existence and it is our duty to contribute
positively.
The building of Harbord Diggers is now well underway and as
we speak, ahead of schedule and under budget. The threeyear construction plan is now looking at delivering Stage One
earlier than expected including three restaurants, two bars, a
coffee shop, childcare centre and all the infrastructure for a truly
vibrant and exciting venue that will make significant contributions
financially to Mounties Group but more importantly, deliver an
amazing experience for our members and guests.
In the meantime, we have honoured our commitment to
remain open throughout the development and have invested
in temporary infrastructure that has seen our reduced-sized
‘temp club’ still raise the bar in the standard of service and
product offering to our members and guests. From the popular
retro Digger’s Diner caravan at our entry off Evans Street to the
chic and contemporary southern Italian inspired tapas bar, Gio,
the Diggers continues to be a destination for the community to
relax in and enjoy.
DALE HUNT
General Manager - Northern Sites
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COMMUNITY GRANTS REPORT
I am proud to report on Mounties Group Community
Grants for the past year, and the clubs continuing
commitment to our community.
At the outset I would like to acknowledge all our members
for supporting the club. Without that support we would
not be able to help so many worthwhile causes, wherever
or whenever they occur. I would also like to particularly
thank those of you who support the community by your
involvement in a voluntary capacity.
Grants made in the financial year totalled $5.625m.
The most significant funding was made available through
donations (including ClubGRANTS).
Support was provided as follows:
Sports Ground Expense
(maintaining local sporting fields)

$586,443

Children’s Christmas Party

$117,947

Seniors Events

$63,344

Carols by Candlelight

$36,699

General Donations (inc ClubGRANTS)

$2,012,271

Sub Club Expenses

$1,339,086

Other Sport

$1,469,411

ClubGRANTS is a scheme, which allows clubs to allocate
a portion of their total gaming revenue to recognised
community projects. The scheme incorporates a
process, which scrutinises and ranks, local projects for
this funding. It is facilitated by local councils who best
understand and plan for the broader social needs of
local communities. The club is left with a final decision on
which projects they choose to support.
Mounties Group actively participates in three (3) local
council committees as part of the ClubGRANTS scheme.
We are also fortunate to be able to fund a raft of other
community support initiatives in all of our local areas.
(Fairfield, Liverpool, Warringah and Manly).
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The following table shows how the Group has distributed
the funds made available by the ClubGRANTS scheme
in 2016:
CATEGORY 1

CATEGORY 2

CATEGORY 3

TOTAL

Mounties

$679,085

$2,665,442

$360,682

$3,705,209

Harbord

$42,430

$267,035

$21,129

$330,594

Mekong

$85,230

$127,087

$44,540

$256,857

Triglav

$41,591

$109,141

$21,571

$172,303

Group

$848,436

$3,168,705

$447,922

$4,465,063

Minimum

$841,846

$1,231,789

$447,922

$2,521,557

You will see from the table above that Mounties Groups’
grants far exceed the amount required under the
ClubGRANTS program.
SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS FUNDED AS PART OF
CLUBGRANTS THROUGH MOUNTIES INCLUDED:
Verona School
(Annual School Camp)

$7,200

Bossley Park High School
(Teen Mental Health First Aid)

$2,700

CORE Community Services Ltd
(The Craft Café)

$5,680

Fairfield Resource Centre
(Support Sisters)
Powerhouse Youth Theatre
(The Suburbist)

$23,688
$7,500

Veronica School (Young Men’s Group)

$10,866

Fairfield Resource Centre
(Halfway Home)

$44,872

The Ted Noffs Foundation
(Beats for the Street)

$35,000

Ted Noffs Foundation
(Welcome Home!)

$25,000

Learning Links
(Educational Support Resources)

$5,140

Muscular Dystrophy Association of NSW
(Kids & Young People)

$9,000

Community Action Services
(MS Moves)

$21,912

Fairfield Business Education Partnership
(Youth Mental Health Summit)

$28,710

Vision Australia
(Information & Library Services)

$9,695

Aust Breastfeeding Association
(Breast Pumps)

$5,855

SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS FUNDED UNDER
CLUBGRANTS THROUGH HARBORD
DIGGERS INCLUDED:
Northside Enterprise Incorp
(Upskilling Employees with Disabilities)

$8,500

Fairfield Business Education Partnership
(FUSION)

$19,490

Beyond a Joke (Targeting Bullying)

$3,390

Youthsafe

$10,770

Be Centre Foundation
(Disadvantaged and Vulnerable Children)

$5,000

CORE Community Services Ltd
(Seniors Past in Pictures)

$8,690

DANNI Meads-Barlow Foundation
(Monitoring Equipment)

Freshwater Surf Life Club
(Life Saving Equipment and Uniforms)

$7,280

SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS FUNDED UNDER
CLUBGRANTS THROUGH MEKONG INCLUDED:

$25,000

Macular Disease Foundation

$39,035

Share Care Inc

$12,000

Sydney Legacy
(Legacy Dependent Support)

Vietnamese Community in Australia
(Employment for New Migrants)

$25,000
$1,550

$6,000

Uniting Volunteer Recognition

Autisim Advisory and Support Service
(Art Play Therapy for Autism)

$39,035

$8,730

Macular Disease Foundation

CORE Community Service (Voices of Aged)

Outer Liverpool Community Services
(Children’s Breakfast Program)

$6,700

$16,000

Vietnamese Australian Welfare Association

$25,000

Vietnamese Australian Table Tennis
Association (VCA)

$25,000

Child Abuse Prevention Service
(Parenting in a New Country)

$10,000

Inspire Community Services
(Liverpool Community Kitchen)

SIGNIFICANT PROJECTS FUNDED UNDER
CLUBGRANTS THROUGH TRIGLAV INCLUDED:

$10,000

SEWA Australia (Seniors Milan)

$5,000

Bonnyrigg Public School
(Swimming & Water Safety Program)

Samoa Victim Support Group Sydney

$6,111

The Junction Works Limited
(People with Disabilities)

$6,190

Wheels Towards Independence
Cancer Patients Foundation
(Look Good Feel Better)

$21,600
$7,000

The Shepherd Centre for Deaf Children

$18,450

Rosebank Child Sexual Abuse Service

$10,000

Fairfield Business Education Partnership

$19,955

Fairfield Business Education Partnership
(FUSION)

$19,490

$3,356

Asian Women at Work Inc (Computer Classes) $7,500
Warakirri College
(Transition to Training or Employment)

$4,275

Miracle Babies Foundation
(NICU Survival Packs)

$6,250

Autism Advisory and Support Service
(Music Therapy for Autism)

$6,000

Cambodian Australian Welfare Council
(Parenting Support)

$14,210
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Mounties Group support for the Noffs Foundation’s Street
University project in Liverpool has proven to be a positive
contribution to the local area. The Street University leads
the field of engaging with marginalised youth. Government
appears to have seen the benefit that the concept can
bring to a community. Mounties Group is honoured to
have been able to provide support from the outset.
Changes to ClubGRANTS in 2011 saw the introduction
of Category 3 for major infrastructure projects. Mounties
Group has contributed $447,922 to this fund in the 2016
year. The NSW Government continues to make funding
available across the state for infrastructure projects in the
community.
One of our major grant recipients outside of the
ClubGRANTS scheme is CareFlight. Recently, we
launched the Mounties Group/CareFlight agreement to
support our $100,000 per year commitment over three
years.
I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the
efforts of the Local Committees for the role they play
in making sure that our Community Grants Committee
is aware of the most relevant projects for funding. The
work to prioritise all the eligible projects is invaluable to
our committee decision-making process. Executive
Assistant, Nalan, is a member of two local committees
and I thank her for her efforts in that regard.
Of course, we receive many requests for financial and
other assistance from a wide range of community
organisations and individuals, and we do our best
to assist as many as possible. Requests are always
assessed responsibly and where possible, supported
at an appropriate level. Where we are able to support
projects, we always make sure that the community is the
beneficiary.
I am proud to have been Chairman of a Committee that
is able to oversee the distribution of club funds to the
members of our community. Accordingly, I would like to
acknowledge the efforts of the Grants Committee for their
commitment and diligence.

STEVE FITZPATRICK
Community Grants Committee Chairman
20 September 2016
COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Lorraine Dean, Trevor Forman, Bill McGrory, Marilyn Price
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OUR WORK WITH THE
COMMUNITY
1. JEANS FOR GENES DAY

10. RABBIT RESCUE

Mounties Staff were decked out in their Jeans raising
$2767.90 for Jeans for Genes Day.

Triglav gave community members the opportunity
to adopt a rabbit at Easter from the Rabbit Rescue
Sanctuary.

2. TOO HOT TO HANDLE
Mounties held a special fundraiser in November to
promote the 2016 NSW Firefighters calendar and raise
money for the Burns Unit at the Children’s Hospital at
Westmead.
3. HOGS FOR THE HOMELESS
Mounties Group sponsored former NSW State of Origin
legends Laurie Daley, Brad Fittler and Josh Perry to run
a coaching clinic for Mounties rugby league juniors and
sleep out at Mounties Oval as part of the NSW Rugby
League’s Hogs for the Homeless Appeal.
4. ANZAC DAY AT HARBORD DIGGERS

11. ANNUAL CHARITY RACE DAY
Each year Mounties Group Directors and Harbord
Diggers volunteer their time and effort to organise and
run a charity race day. This year resulted in Homes
for Heroes and Youth Cancer Services receiving an
incredible $52,000 each.
12. MACHINES & MACCHIATOS
Sydney’s motoring enthusiasts united over their
collective love of machines at Harbord Diggers raising
over $8,000 for multiple charities including Cure Brain
Cancer, Beyond Blue and Australian Men’s Shed
Association.

Thousands flooded through the gates of Harbord
Diggers on ANZAC Day to attend the club’s iconic
dawn service and enjoy a lively game of two-up in the
great outdoors.
5. SWEET SUCCESS
Mounties Group tastes sweet success raising
$6,740.10 for the Biggest Morning Tea in support of
the Cancer Council.
6. TEEING OFF FOR A CAUSE
Mounties Group invited industry partners to enjoy a day
on the green at the Mounties Group Golf Day. A cheque
was presented for $35,000 to the Autism Advisory and
Support Service in Liverpool.
7. SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMS

7

Mekong awards two $10,000 university scholarships
to local students. Both recipients Julia Nguyen and
Kylie Huynh received exceptional results in the Higher
School Certificate in 2015 and are seeking to further
their education at the University of Sydney this year.
8. WORLD’S GREATEST SHAVE
The sounds of buzzing electric clippers echoed as
brave patrons coloured and waxed their hair for the
Leukaemia Foundation’s World’s Greatest Shave
raising $7,698.60.
9. THINK PINK
Mounties Group raised a total $13,880 for the Cancer
Council’s Pink Ribbon campaign through a show at
Mounties, a high tea event at Triglav and staff donations.
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OUR COMMITMENT TO RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
Mounties Group is committed to providing the highest
standards of customer care and responsible gambling.
Responsible gambling in a regulated environment is
when consumers have sufficient and relevant information
and can exercise a rational and sensible choice based on
their circumstances. It means a shared responsibility with
collective action by the gambling industry, government,
individuals and communities. While an individual’s
decision to partake in gaming is a personal choice, it
is our responsibility to inform our customers about our
gaming facilities and promote the services and support
available to them should they seek help for problems
associated with gambling.
SELF-EXCLUSION SCHEME
The Club provides the most comprehensive self-exclusion
scheme in NSW to its patrons. Mounties Group is one
of the few clubs which has been providing a multiple
venue self-exclusion scheme since 2002, preventing the
need for patrons to visit each individual venue from which
they wish to be self-excluded. The Group also offers its
patrons a number of ways in which to sign up to its selfexclusion scheme:
1. In person at any Mounties Group club, at any time
2. Through a BetSafe counsellor as part of a
counselling session
3. Remotely by utilising BetSafe’s online self-exclusion
service (at www.betsafe.com.au/self_exclusion).
Since 2001 we have assisted over 1,100 people to
exclude themselves from gambling at the Mounties Group
either through Mounties directly or as part of multiple selfexclusion agreements.
According to statistics from the last Productivity
Commission Report, Mounties Group is one of, if not the
most effective venues at processing self-exclusions in
NSW.
PROBLEM GAMBLING COUNSELLING
Whilst the majority of other NSW gaming venues use their
industry body’s referral service, our patrons are referred to
the fully integrated BetSafe problem gambling counselling
service. The key characteristics of BetSafe’s counselling
service are:
•

24-hour telephone counselling

•

Business hours, evening and weekend face-to
face appointments

•

Experienced problem gambling counsellors, a
number of which have over 20 years’ experience

•

No limits on the number of sessions

•

No waiting lists
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•

Support for culturally and linguistically diverse
(non-English speaking) clients

•

Flexible treatment models (as opposed to rigid
cognitive therapy based models)

•

Comprehensive counselling and support to family
members of problem gamblers.

ASSISTANCE FOR FAMILY MEMBERS
Mounties Group recognises that problem gambling not
only affects the individual with the problem but also
family members and other people that are close to the
person. It is very common for family members of problem
gamblers to be under a lot of stress as they are the ones
who need to deal with a lot of the issues stemming from
the gambling problem. BetSafe’s counselling service can
help family members in dealing with these issues and
provide effective strategies on how they can get the
problem gambler to see help.
Mounties Group venues are some of the few venues in
NSW to have formalised procedures in place for Third
Party Exclusions. Mounties Group can arrange to have
a problem gambler excluded from gambling if a family
member can provide evidence to support their claims.
The counsellors at BetSafe can help family members in
obtaining the necessary evidence to arrange for a Third
Party Exclusion.
TRAINING
All staff members, including Senior Management and
Directors hold Responsible Conduct of Gambling (RCG)
and Responsible Service of Alcohol (RSA) certificates
approved by Liquor & Gaming NSW. In addition to this,
all staff undertake biennial problem gambler awareness
training conducted by BetSafe to ensure any staff
member is able to respond appropriately to a request for
assistance. This additional training covers practical topics
such as:
1. What to do when approached by a problem
gambler
2. How a problem gambler might behave
3. The specific help available to patrons of the club.
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
Mounties Group has adopted BetSafe’s comprehensive
policies and procedures manual. BetSafe’s policies and
procedures cover such topics as dealing with:
1. Unattended minors
2. Requests for assistance from family members
3. Admissions of a gambling problem.
The Group’s policies and procedures ensure it is
exceeding the legislative requirements and showing a
proper duty-of-care to all patrons.

INFORMATION AND SUPPORT
All Mounties Group clubs display many additional signs
and brochures to increase awareness and ensure patrons
are easily able to access support services.
BetSafe business cards, responsible gambling brochures
and self-exclusion brochures are displayed at all clubs
and the Group has even taken the step of developing
a dedicated “help brochure” in the 12 most common
languages in south west Sydney.
COMPLIANCE
All Mounties Group clubs are subject to BetSafe
compliance audits every three months. These audits
check for compliance in relation to the following
requirements:
1. Entry signage
2. ATM & CRT signage
3. Gaming area signage
4. Gaming machine compliance
5. Keno signage
6. TAB signage
7. Bar signage
8. Advertising compliance
9. Website compliance.
BetSafe provides a comprehensive report outlining
requirements and recommendations. The Group has
made the further commitment to respond to crucial report
recommendations within 24 hours.
OTHER INITIATIVES
Mounties Group has adopted the ClubsNSW Registered
Clubs Responsible Conduct of Gambling Code of
Practice – Best Practice Guidelines.
As a BetSafe partner Mounties Group venues are
automatically certified by the Global Gambling Guidance
Group (G4) as a world’s best practice responsible
gambling venue. The Group declines patron requests to
cash cheques. This goes beyond the requirements set
out in Sections 29-31 of the Regulation (which allows
cashing of cheques that are made out to the venue; below
$400; for one single person per day; and not previously
dishonoured). All club advertising and promotions comply
with the Act and Regulations.
Six out of the seven Mounties Group clubs have car parking
facilities for members and guests. Several procedures are
used to ensure that children are not left unattended in cars
whilst the drivers are attending the club, including signage
informing patrons not to leave children unattended; video
surveillance of the car park; regular patrolling by licensed
security personnel during weekend evenings; and the
implementation of emergency procedures to remove
children left locked in cars, reporting children at risk, and
disciplining members responsible.
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OUR SPORTING PARTNERS
MAJOR PARTNER

lawyers
APPAREL PARTNERS

peterwarren.com.au
Peter Warren Automotive

GOLD PARTNER
Citrine Developments & Marketing
SILVER PARTNERS
Cucina 105
Liverpool Glass
R&V Electrical
Elastoplast
BRONZE PARTNERS
East Software
Massive Online Furniture Outlet
FCE Group
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THE YEAR IN
ENTERTAINMENT
1. MICHAEL JACKSON LEGACY
Brought to life in a full-scale production
this international event included the original
members of the Michael Jackson band from
the Victory, Bad, Dangerous, History and
This Is It tours. Featuring world-renowned
impersonator William Hall, this show brought
back the energy, the dance and the music that
spanned generations and became the legend
that is Michael Jackson.

1

2

2. THE WIGGLES
The Wiggle-Town Tour featured new hits as well
as Wiggle classics such as “Hot Potato” and
“Rock a Bye Your Bear”. The Fab Four of fun
were of course joined by Dorothy the Dinosaur,
Captain Feathersword, Wags the Dog and
Henry the Octopus! Mounties hosted two sold
out shows with over 1,100 tickets sold.

4

3. TED E – DAVID STRASSMAN
David Strassman returned to the Mounties
stage this year with his brand new international
show filled with an evening of hilarious comedy
and side-splitting antics from Ted E. Bare,
Chuck Wood, and their crazy friends.
4. JUSTICE CREW

9

Eight time ARIA nominees Justice Crew hit
the Mounties stage with their explosive live
show with supporting act Local hip hop crew
Kookies N Kream! Performing their biggest hits,
including “Que Sera” and “Best Night”, fans
were also be treated to brand new unreleased
material to be previewed at each show.
5. Hi-5!

7

3

10

11

Hi-5! came to party at Mounties last summer
with their brand new show Hi-5! Summer
Songfest! This Songfest extravaganza included
all the favourite Hi-5! songs to sing and dance
along with. A meet and greet with the Hi-5!
cast was also held prior to the show for our
lucky patrons and their children to come and
meet them prior to the concert.
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THE YEAR IN
EVENTS
5

6. MOUNTIES NAMES BRYDEN’S LAWYERS
AS MAJOR SPORTS PARTNER
Lee Hagipantelis, Principal of Bryden’s Lawyers
was presented with the first framed Mounties
Rugby League and Mounties Wanderers jerseys
of the season. The iconic jerseys – emblazoned
with the Brydens logo – are representative of the
club’s major sports partnership for 2015/16.
7. HALLOWEEN
The annual Halloween Kids Disco at Mounties
and Family Fun Day at Triglav have always been
sell out events offering chills and thrills for the
whole family to enjoy.

6

8. NEW YEAR’S EVE FIREWORKS
Mounties and Triglav partnered with Fairfield City
Council to ring in the New Year. The clubs were
two of ten venues across the local government
area to host simultaneous fireworks displays.
9. THE NEW LOOK DIGGERS IS UNVEILED
Standing firm in its commitment to remain open
during development, a VIP night was held in April
to officially launch the opening of the Harbord
Diggers Temp Club. Former seven-time world
surfing champion Layne Beachley and partner
(INXS band member Kirk Pengilly) were among
the guests of the event held at new tapas bar,
Gio.
10. FAMILY FUN DAYS AT TRIGLAV

8

Triglav has built a reputation for its fabulous Family
Fun days, which are filled with entertainment
including jumping castles, face painting, arts and
crafts and more, creating the experiences you
and your kids will remember forever.
11. TET FESTIVAL MEKONG
Mekong has always been involved with the
community and is a major supporter of important
cultural events and community groups in Fairfield
City area - in particular the TET Festival, a major
cultural event that Mekong has been supporting
for over a decade.
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OUR PLANNING PROCESS
At the start of each new financial year, the Board of
Directors and the executive management team workshop
the Group’s priorities to deliver a Strategic Plan. This
plan informs business plans, which include annual
budgets. Management and staff tasked to deliver these
plans report to the Board each quarter on progress and
achievements.
A demanding meeting schedule for Board and appointed
committee meetings is released at the beginning of
the financial year. Attendance is strictly monitored and
all meetings fully documented. Monthly management
reports are tabled at the Board meetings.
Annual business plans are drafted and taking agreed
KPIs into account, these provide the foundation for our
annual budget.
With the assistance of Fairfield and Liverpool Councils,
the Club conducts its annual ClubGRANTS program to
determine funding priorities for the year. Other funding
and sponsorship requests are dealt with by the Board,
and ongoing member feedback provides an insight on
the will of the members.
The Annual Report closes the loop in the process,
reporting back on achievements and financial results to
members and key stakeholders.

ANNUAL
STRATEGIC PLAN
Annual Planning
Workshop
ANNUAL
BUDGET

BOARD &
COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Monthly
Management
Reports
COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT
ClubGRANTS &
Smartygrant
program. Member
feedback
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Review & set
individual
business
KPIs

MOUNTIES GROUP SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

GREG PICKERING

DARREN MARINO

DALE HUNT

JASON WOODS

Group Chief
Executive Officer

General Manager
Mount Pritchard

General Manager
Northern Sites

General Manager Western
Sites Community Clubs

RALPH WEARNE

MICHAEL PULLIN

CENON MONTEJO

ANNETTE MARTIN

Group Financial Controller

Group Gaming
Operations Manager

Group Procurement
Manager

Group Employment
Relations Manager

MATTHEW HORT

LARISSA O’CONNOR

KAREN SHIPLEY

Group IT Manager

Group Marketing &
Communications Manager

Mounties Fitness Manager &
Special Projects - Harbord
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DIRECTOR’S
REPORT
YOUR DIRECTORS SUBMIT
THEIR REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2016.
The names and details of the
directors in office during the financial
year and until the date of this report
are as follows:
DIRECTORS:
Kevin Ingram (President),
John Joseph Dean, Lorraine Dean,
Stephen Edwards, Steve Fitzpatrick
Trevor Forman, Leon Hansen,
Jeanette McNevin, William McGrory,
Thomas Murphy, Marilyn Price
CEO:
Gregory Pickering
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KEVIN INGRAM

JOHN DEAN

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1972-current
• Club Life Member
• Club Director 1980-current
• Club President 2003-current
• Club Vice President 1985-1995
& 1998-2003
• Minute Secretary - 4 years
• Entertainment Director 1993-2003
• Club Editor Publicity Officer 2003
• Catering Director 1989-1992
• Leagues Clubs Association Delegate
2006-current
• ClubsNSW Northern Region Delegate
2006-current
• RSL Services Club Delegate 2006-current
• Life Member Parramatta District Junior Rugby
League Club & Patron
• Life Member Parramatta District Rugby
League
• Life Member Lawn Bowls Sub Club & Patron
• Retired Pool Manager
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Audit and Governance Committee
• Constitution Committee (Chair)
• Remuneration Committee (Chair)
Declared Interest in Contracts
• New Diggers Service Co. Pty Ltd Director

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1986-current
• Club Life Member
• Director 1997-current
• Vice President 2003-2009, 2011-current
• Treasurer 2007-current
• Federation Community Sport Workers Club
2008, 2012-current (stand by)
• ClubsNSW (Western Metropolitan Region) stand by
• Sports Director 1997-2003
• Sports Committee 1995-2008
• Audit & Governance Committee Member
2009, 2011-2014
• Gaming Committee Chair 2013-current
• Gaming Committee Member 2009-current
• Assistant Club Captain 1995
• Club Captain 1996 and 1997
• Life Member Mounties Soccer Club
• Quinlan Shield Delegate 1996-2010
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
• Engineering Manager
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Constitution Committee (Chair)
• Gaming Committee (Chair)
• Remuneration Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• New Diggers Land Co. Pty Ltd Director

LORRAINE DEAN
Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1988-current
• Club Director 2008-current
• Sports Director 2012-current
• Minute Secretary 2011-current
• Sports Committee 2006-2009, 2012-current
• RSL and Service Clubs Association Delegate
2011-2014
• Correspondence Committee Chair
2011-current
• OH&S Committee - Board Representative
2008-2011
• Club Captain 2008
• Assistant Club Captain 2006-2007
• Life Member Netball
• President Netball 1998-2014
• Constitution Committee 2011
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Community Grants Committee
• Correspondence Committee (Chair)
• Sports Committee (Chair)
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

STEPHEN EDWARDS
Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Life Member
• Club Member 1981-current
• Club Director 2003-current
• Catering Director 2006-current
• Sports Committee 2003-2014
• Grants Committee 2005-2010
• Gaming Committee 2004-2010,
2014-current
• ClubsNSW Delegate 2004, 2010
• Entertainment Director 2011
• Publicity Director 2011
• Director overseeing Mounties Rugby League
Club 2006-2009
• Member Mounties Junior Rugby League Club
• Directors Mandatory Training
• Operations Manager
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Gaming Committee
• Building Defects Committee
• Remuneration Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

STEVE FITZPATRICK
Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1980-current
• Club Life Member
• Club Director 1993-current
• Club Vice President 1996-current
• Delegate to ClubsNSW, RSL Clubs &
Leagues Clubs Association
• Community Grants Committee Chair
2000-current
• Sports Director 1993-1996, 2008
• Director & Delegate to Federation of
Workers Clubs
• Mounties Journal Editor
• President Snooker Club and Committee
Member
• Life Member Snooker Club
• Quinlan Shield Life Member
• Quinlan Shield Secretary/Recorder/Delegate/
Mounties Team Captain
• Retired Customs Classifier (48 years)
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Audit and Governance Committee
• Building Defects Committee
• Community Grants Committee (Chair)
• Gaming Committee
• Sports Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

MOUNTIES GROUP 2016 ANNUAL REPORT -

39

TREVOR FORMAN

LEON HANSEN

JEANETTE MCNEVIN

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1994-current
• Club Director 2012-current
• Leagues Clubs Association - Delegate
• Life Member Junior Rugby League
• Manufacturing Manager
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Building Defects Committee (Chair)
• Community Grants
• Gaming Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 2005-current
• Club Director 2010-current
• RSL Services Association Delegate
2010-current
• ClubsNSW Northern Region Delegate
2010-current
• Gaming Committee 2010-2012
• Sports Committee 2010-current
• Leagues Club Australia Delegate
2014-current
• Retired Roads and Pavement Supervisor
Local Council-45 Years
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Harbord Advisory Committee
• Harbord Diggers RSL Sub Branch
• Sports Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Betting.Club Pty Ltd Director
• Club Promotional Strategies Pty Ltd Director
(next club)
• New Diggers Car Park Co. Pty Ltd Director

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1996-current
• Club Director 2014-current
• Softball/TBall-Life Member
• Club Captain 2008-2014
• Assistant Club Captain 2007-2008
• Retired
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Building Defects Committee
• Correspondence Committee
• Remuneration Committee
• Sports Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil
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WILLIAM MCGRORY

THOMAS MURPHY

MARILYN PRICE

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Member 1979-current
• Club Director 2011-current
• Entertainment Director 2011-2012
• FCSWC Delegate
• Clubs NSW – Delegate
• Clubs NSW Northern Region (standby)
• Mounties Journal Editor
Directors Mandatory Training
• Directors Foundation and Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
• Managing Director
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Building Defects Committee
• Community Grants Committee
• Constitution Committee
• Correspondence Committee
• Gaming Committee
• Remuneration Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Foundation Member 1964-current
• Club Life Member
• Assistant Club Captain 1993
• Club Captain 1994
• Club Director 1995-current
• Beverage Director 2013-current
• Sports Committee 1995-2003, 2006-2009
• Delegate ClubsNSW 1995-2003,
2005-2007, 2009-2014
• Catering Director 2003-2005
• President Indoor Bowls 1989-2015
• Treasurer Indoor Bowls 2016
• Life Member Indoor Bowls
• Retired
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil

Qualifications and special responsibilities
• Club Life Member
• Club Member 1989-current
• Club Director 2001-current
• Community Grants Committee 2002-current
• Beverage Director 2008-2010
• Building Defects Committee Chair
2010-2014
• Entertainment Director 2013-current
• WHS Delegate - current
• Sports Director 2004
• ClubsNSW Northern Region Delegate
2006-current
• Leagues Club Association Delegate
2006-current
• RSL Services Association Delegate
2007-current
• Correspondence Committee 2003-current
• Gaming Committee Chair 2006
• Gaming Committee 2004-2014
• Sports Committee 2001-2007, 2009-current
• Assistant Club Captain 1999-2000
• Life Member Junior Soccer
• Retired Widow
Industry Specific Training Completed
• Directors Foundation & Management
Collaboration
• Finance for Clubs Boards
Current Sub Committee Membership
• Community Grants Committee
• Correspondence Committee
• Sports Committee
Declared Interest in Contracts
• Nil
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of Mt Pritchard & District
Community Club Ltd and the subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is the encouragement of sport and the provision of
accommodation and facilities for members and the
community, by operating clubs licensed under the
provisions of the Registered Clubs Act 1976 (as
amended).

RECONCILIATION
GROUP NET PROFIT
PLUS
Share of current year loss
Betting.Club Pty Ltd

$4,476,563

Consolidation of Betting.Club Pty Ltd

$3,066,504

The number of members at the year-end was 105,015
(2015: 104,956).

Income tax

MEASUREMENT OF SUCCESS

Depreciation

The Group measures success by focusing on two key
areas:

Donations

1. Financial performance measured through:
(i) Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation, rent, and donations (EBITDARD)
(ii) Revenue
(iii) Wages costs
(iv) Profitability
(v) Patron visitations
(vi) Return on capital employed
2. Provision of social welfare for the Group’s
membership and the community.
OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
The net profit of the Group for the financial year ended
30 June 2016 after providing for income tax was
$3,279,313 (2015: $5,610,580).
The net profit of the Parent for the financial year ended
year after providing for income tax was $6,345,815
(2015: $5,610,580).
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
A strong result from club operations.
EBITDARD (operating cash flow) for the Group excluding
items below was $33.6m which was $5.32m better than
last year.
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$3,279,313

$3,943

Interest

$53,583
$16,996,555
$5,572,260

Rent/Leasing

$156,071

Club EBITDARD

$30,325,479
$33,604,792

EBITDARD generated by Mounties was $36.0m being
$5.01m better than last year and has been complimented
by positive results from Mekong $5.0m being $0.74m
better than last year, and Triglav $2.8m, $0.69m better
than last year. These three clubs contributed 132% of
EBITDARD for the group.
EBITDARD as % of revenue is a key indicator of
performance, this year:
Clubs:
Mekong
Triglav:
Mounties:

26.6%
42.7%
42.3%
37.1%

Harbord Diggers had a negative EBITDARD $2.2m being
$1.9m worse than last year. This result is indicative of the
cost of developing a new business and reflects shortfalls
in catering, gaming and bar. We expect that this result will
be improved though the matter will not be resolved until
the development is completed in almost two years’ time.
Manly Bowling Club posted an EBITDARD ($166k) which
was $105k below last year
Mounties Bowling (-$410k) and Club Italia (-$383k),
whilst requiring some support, succeeded in meeting our
obligations to our members.
The most signficant impact on the result has been the
uplift in gaming at the western sites. The cost of operating
catering and bars at Harbord Diggers has tempered that
uplift. The results for the northern sites have not met
expectations. The breakdown of revenue is provided at
page 54 of this report.

Profit has been impacted by the following abnormal items:
a) A partial write off of the value of Harbord
Diggers assets associated with the New Diggers
development (buildings) of $5,157,096;
b) Operational funding of Betting.Club Pty Ltd an
internet wagering and sports betting company of
$4,476,563; and
c) Consolidation of the accounts as a result of the
acquisition of a majority shareholding in
Betting.Club Pty Ltd in September 2015, requiring
a write off of losses incurred by the company
during its start up phase of $3,066,504.
The Group continues to perform well in Gaming and
currently ranked number one in NSW for gaming machine
profit.
Community Contributions of $5,625,201 (2015:
$5,003,131) highlighted Mounties Group’s continuing
support.
SHORT & LONG TERM OBJECTIVES
OF THE GROUP
The short and long term objectives of the Group are
to continue to provide and promote sporting and
social activities for members in accordance with our
constitution. These objectives are achieved by continuing
to maintain a level of operational profitability that supports
the objectives, and developing a long term supporter
base which will benefit from the Group’s success.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no significant events occurring after
the reporting period which may affect either the Group’s
operations or results of those operations or the Group’s
state of affairs.
MEMBERS LIABILITY
For each class of membership in the Group – the amount
which a member of that class is liable to contribute if the
Group is wound up, and the total amount that members
of the Group are liable to contribute if the Group is wound
up. The liability of members is limited to $2 in the event
that the Group is wound up.
The total amount that members of the Group are liable
to contribute in the event that the Group is wound up is
$210,030 (2015: $209,912).

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
During or since the end of the financial year, no director
of the Group has received or become entitled to receive
a benefit, other than a benefit included in the aggregate
amount of emoluments received or due and receivable
by the directors as shown in the consolidated financial
statements, by reason of a contract entered into by the
Group with:
•

a director; or

•

a firm of which the director is a member; or

•

an entity in which a director has a substantial
financial interest.

INDEMNIFICATION OF AUDITORS
To the extent permitted by law, the Group has agreed
to indemnify its auditor, Ernst & Young, as part of the
terms of its audit engagement agreement against claims
by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified
amount). No payment has been made to indemnify Ernst
& Young during or since the financial year.
AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE
Two directors received a declaration of independence
from the auditors. The declaration is included within this
annual report.
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
During the financial year the Group paid premiums in respect
of a contract insuring all the directors and executives of
Mt Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd against legal
liability arising for any wrongful act committed, attempted
or allegedly committed or attempted in the course of their
duties as a director or executive of the Group. The policies
prohibits disclosure of the premium paid.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

KEVIN INGRAM
Director

JOHN DEAN
Director
20 September 2016
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OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2016. The below consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

NOTES

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

Revenue

5(a)

129,271,769

121,890,932

Costs attributable

5(b)

(65,785,575)

(69,364,647)

Gross profit

63,486,194

52,526,285

Community support expenses

5(b)

(5,572,260)

(5,003,131)

General and administration expenses

5(b)

(47,309,261)

(40,566,062)

(3,511,776)

(1,000,000)

Impairment loss

(53,583)

-

2,042,588

5,603,740

(3,943)

6,840

Profit after income tax

2,038,645

5,610,580

Attributable to:

3,279,313

5,610,580

(1,240,668)

-

2,038,645

5,610,580

Loss taken to equity

(1,025,341)

-

Other comprehensive loss for the year

(1,025,341)

-

1,013,304

5,610,580

Interest expense
Profit after income tax
Income tax (expense)/benefit

Members of the parent
Minority interests

6

Other comprehensive income (Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Total comprehensive income for the year
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 30 June 2016. The below consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

NOTES

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

Cash

7

17,383,706

7,361,755

Trade and other receivables

8

1,345,554

1,142,628

Inventories

9

425,595

407,234

10

538,552

16,251,750

19,693,407

25,163,367

30,000

2,450,000

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets
Total current assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables

8
6

151,533

155,476

Property, plant and equipment

11

203,638,616

175,895,714

Intangible assets

12

53,418,962

53,308,542

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

257,239,111

231,809,732

Total assets

276,932,518

256,973,099

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

13

16,221,745

8,684,235

Provisions

14

40,500

46,500

Employee benefit liabilities

15

5,977,883

5,833,838

Deferred revenue

13

Total current liabilities

864,611

770,943

23,104,739

15,335,516

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

17

11,829,991

-

Provisions

14

1,104,761

1,141,253

Derivative financial liabilities

16

1,025,341

-

Employee benefit liabilities

15

703,955

1,021,385

Deferred revenue

13

465,928

408,152

Total non-current liabilities

15,129,976

2,570,790

Total liabilities

38,234,715

17,906,306

238,697,803

239,066,793

Net assets
MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Retained earnings

18

226,704,587

223,425,274

Revaluation reserve

18

12,896,229

12,896,229

Amalgamation reserve

18

2,745,290

2,745,290

Hedging reserve

18

(1,025,341)

-

Minority interests

18

(2,622,962)

-

Total members' equity

238,407,095

239,066,793

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

276,932,518

256,973,099
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2016. The below consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

RETAINED
EARNINGS ($)

REVALUATION
RESERVE ($)
(NOTE 18)

AMALGAMATION
RESERVE ($) (NOTE 18)

HEDGING RESERVE ($)
(NOTE 18)

MINORITY
INTERESTS ($)

TOTAL EQUITY ($)

AT 1 JULY 2015

223,425,274

12,896,229

2,745,290

-

-

239,066,793

Profit for the year

3,279,313

-

-

-

(1,240,668)

2,038,645

-

-

-

(1,025,341)

-

(1,025,341)

3,279,313

-

-

(1,025,341)

(1,240,668)

1,013,304

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Acquisition of non-controlling interests

-

-

-

-

(1,382,294)

(1,382,294)

AT 30 JUNE 2016

226,704,587

12,896,229

2,745,290

(1,025,341)

(2,622,962)

238,697,803

AT 1 JULY 2014

217,814,694

12,896,229

2,745,290

-

-

233,456,213

Profit for the year

5,610,580

-

-

-

-

5,610,580

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,610,580

-

-

-

-

5,610,580

223,425,274

12,896,229

2,745,290

-

-

239,066,793

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
AT 30 JUNE 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2016. The below consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

NOTES

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
142,810,667

131,853,898

(121,100,759)

(109,609,701)

Interest received

356,142

569,956

Interest paid

(53,583)

(2,046)

-

13,680

21,958,884

22,823,741

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Income tax received
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

756,315

474,411

(40,126,017)

(20,185,932)

(110,420)

(200,000)

15,713,198

-

-

(2,420,952)

(23,766,924)

(22,332,473)

Proceeds from borrowings

11,829,991

-

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

11,829,991

-

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

10,021,951

491,268

7,361,755

6,870,487

17,383,706

7,361,755

Proceeds from sale of other financial assets
Payments for purchase of other financial assets
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Mt Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd (the “Group”)
is a company limited by guarantee and a not-for-profit
entity. The Constitution prohibits paying a dividend to
members. The Group is incorporated and domiciled in
Australia.
The primary objective of the Group is the provision of
services for members; the Directors have accordingly
determined the Group is a ‘not-for-profit’ entity for
accounting purposes. In accordance with its Constitution
the liability of members in the event of the Group being
wound up would not exceed $2 per member.
The registered office of Mt Pritchard & District Community
Club Ltd is located at, 101 Meadows Road, Mt Pritchard
NSW 2170. The Group employed 554 employees as at
30 June 2016 (2015: 601).
The principal activity of the Group during the year was
the encouragement of sport and the provision of facilities
for members and the community, by operating clubs
licensed under the provisions of the Registered Clubs
Act 1976 as amended.
The consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2016 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors on 20 September 2016.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial report is a general purpose financial
report, which has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001,
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure
Requirements and other authoritative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. Australian
Accounting Standards contain requirements specific
to not-for-profit entities, including standards AASB 116
Property, Plant and Equipment, AASB 138 Intangible
Assets, AASB 136 Impairment of Assets and AASB 1004
Contributions. The financial report has been prepared
on the basis of historical cost, except for certain assets
which, as noted, are measured at fair value.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars ($).
(B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements (AASB – RDRs) (including
Australian Interpretations) adopted by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

(C) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY,
DISCLOSURES, STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with
those of the previous financial year.
The new and amended Australian Accounting Standard
and AASB interpretations that apply for the first time in
2015/2016 do not impact the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
(D) GOING CONCERN
As at 30 June 2016 the Group has net current asset
deficiency $3,411,332.
The Directors believe the Group will continue as a
going concern and meet its debts and commitments
as and when they fall due. The directors have taken into
account the available unused banking facilities, cash flow
forecasts for the next 12 months from this report and
the continued improvement of operating results and cash
flows to enable them to form this view.
(E) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2016. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if,
the Group has:
•

Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

•

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee

•

The ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:
•

The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote
holders of the investee

•

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

•

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an
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investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, noncontrolling interest and other components of equity, while
any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.
(F) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Business combinations are accounted for in accordance
with AASB 3 Business Combinations using the
purchase method of accounting. The purchase method
of accounting involves assessing the fair value of
the assets and liabilities acquired and the contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of amalgamation; gains
from amalgamation are recognised as a direct addition
to amalgamation reserve within equity and any goodwill
arising from amalgamation is brought into account as
goodwill on amalgamation if such value is sustainable.
(G) CURRENT VERSUS
NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is current
when it is:
•

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in the normal operating cycle

•

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

•

Expected to be realised within 12 months after the
reporting period, or

•

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.
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A liability is current when:
•

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating
cycle

•

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

•

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the
reporting period, or

•

There is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.
(H) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprises cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three month or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
(I) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at amortised
cost less a provision for any uncollectible debts. An
estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of
the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off as incurred.
(J) INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition are accounted for, as follows:
•

Raw materials – purchase cost on a first-in/firstout basis

•

Finished goods and work in progress – cost of
direct materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on normal
operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

•

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

(K) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps
and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price
risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a
derivative under IAS 39 are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as cost of sales. Commodity contracts that are
entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance
with the Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage
requirements are held at cost.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedge item affects profit or loss.
For the purposes of hedge accounting, hedges are
classified as:
•

fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment;

•

cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable
either to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in
an unrecognised firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to
which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and
the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction,
the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity
will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value on offsetting the exposure to changes
in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to
the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine
that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.
Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting
are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges
The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as a finance
cost. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as a finance cost.
For fair value hedges relating to items carried at
amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is
amortised through profit or loss over the remaining
term of the hedge using the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon
as an adjustment exists and no later than when the
hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its
fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.
If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated
as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change
in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to
the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability
with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss.
(ii) Cash Flow Hedges
The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge
reserve, while an ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
The Group uses forward currency contracts as
hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well
as forward commodity contracts for its exposure
to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective
portion relating to foreign currency contracts is
recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion
relating to commodity contracts is recognised in other
operating income or expenses.
Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit
or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
or loss, such as when the hedged item is the cost
of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the
initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of
the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge
is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.
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(L) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(N) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the property, plant and equipment. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses, whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where an indicator of impairment exists or where annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
makes a formal estimate of the recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
2016

2015

5-30 years

5-30 years

33 years

33 years

Other buildings

5-30 years

5-30 years

Plant and equipment

3-20 years

3-20 years

33 years

33 years

Buildings and improvements
Leasehold improvements

Member use property

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset
is derecognised.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
(M) LEASES
The determination of whether an arrangement is
(or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The
arrangement is or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease
or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Group is classified as a finance lease.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
recoverable amount, which is defined for not-for-profit
entities as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell or depreciated replacement cost. For the purpose
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the level
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
(O) GOODWILL
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially
measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit, to which the
goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. When goodwill forms part
of a cash-generating unit and an operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal
of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this manner is
measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not
subsequently reversed.
(P) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Electronic Gaming Machine (EGM) Entitlements are
considered intangibles in accordance with AASB 138
Intangibles and recognised at fair value up to 30 June
2009. Fair value was determined by reference to market
prices at which the entitlements had been traded. It is
considered that an active market for these entitlements
ceased to exist from 1 July 2009 and consequently they
are carried at the most recent valuation.
The entitlements are considered to have an indefinite life
and accordingly are not amortised.
The entitlements are tested for impairment on an annual
basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The Group conducts an annual internal review of asset
values, which is used as a source of information to assess
for any indicators of impairment. External factors, such
as changes in Government regulations, technology and
economic conditions, are also monitored to assess for
indicators of impairment. If any indication of impairment
exists, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the entitlements’ carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Impairment losses are written off against the revaluation
reserve (arose due to recording the entitlements at fair
value up to 30 June 2009) to the extent the revaluation
reserve is exhausted and against consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The gain or loss brought to account on sale of revalued
entitlements will represent the difference between the
proceeds on disposal and the revalued carrying amount.
Electronic Gaming Machine Entitlements acquired by
way of club amalgamation are, in accordance with AASB
3 Business Combinations initially brought to account
at the date of acquisition at the fair value at that date,
and subsequently accounted for in accordance with the
above policy.
(Q) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are carried at cost and
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are
unpaid and arise when the Group becomes obliged to
make future payments in respect of the purchase of
goods and services.
(R) PROVISIONS AND EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT LIABILITIES

Mortality payment
A provision for mortality payment is recognised for the
expected costs associated with the members eligible to
receive the mortality payment. The provision is based on
the number of members entitled to receive the payment,
discounted for the time value of money.
Wages, salaries and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave which are expected
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the reporting date. They are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
Expenses for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised
when the leave is taken and are measured at the rates
paid or payable.
Long service leave and annual leave
The Group does not expect its long service leave or
annual leave benefits to be settled wholly within 12
months of each reporting date. The Group recognises a
liability for long service leave and annual leave measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels, experience of employee departures, and periods
of service. Expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future
cash outflows.
Employee benefits expenses and revenues arising in
respect of the following categories:
•

wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits,
annual leave, long service leave, sick leave and
other leave benefits; and

•

other types of employee benefits;

General
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income net of any
reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

are recognised against profits on a net basis in their
respective categories. In respect of superannuation
plans, any contributions made to the fund by the Group
are recognised against profits when incurred.
(S) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when
the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duty. The Group assesses its revenue
arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is
the principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is
the principal in all the revenue arrangements.
The specific recognition criteria described below must
also be met before revenue is recognised.
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Club revenue
(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods relates to the sale of
the Group’s products (including food and beverage)
is recognised when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the
sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
if any.
(ii) Rendering of services

temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences except:
•

When the deferred income tax liability arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss

•

In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

•

When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

•

In respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Revenue from rendering of services comprises
revenue earned from the provision of gaming facilities
together with other services to members and other
patrons of the Group. Revenue is recognised when
the service is provided.
(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. Interest income is included in other income in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
(iv) Commissions and member fees and subscriptions
Commissions and member fees and subscriptions
are recognised as revenue over the period to which
they relate.
(v) Wagering revenue
Revenue represents the amounts staked less total
payouts on betting activity which has resulted in
the period. The amounts in relation to betting on an
event are recognised as a liability until the outcome
of the event is determined, at which time the revenue
is brought to account. Open betting positions are
carried at fair value and gains and losses arising on
these positions are recognised in revenue.
(T) TAXES
The Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (Amended)
provides that under the concept of mutuality, Clubs are
only liable for income tax on income derived from nonmembers and from outside entities. Current tax assets
and liabilities for the current period are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable
income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

In determining tax balances, the Waratah formula
applicable to registered licensed clubs is used.
Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of GST, except:
•

•

When the GST incurred on a sale or purchase of
assets or services is not payable to or recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the
GST is recognised as part of the revenue or the
expense item or as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset, as applicable

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses impairment of all non-financial
assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions
specific to the Group and to the particular asset that
may lead to impairment. These include economic and
political environments and business expectations. If an
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is determined. Management do not consider that
the triggers for impairment testing have been significant
enough and as such these assets have not been tested
for impairment in this financial period.
Long service leave provision

When receivables and payables are stated with the
amount of GST included. The net amount of sales
tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Commitments and contingencies are
disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

The liability for long service leave is recognised and
measured at the present value of the estimated future
cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at
balance date. In determining the present value of the
liability, attrition rates and pay increases through promotion
and inflation have been taken into account.

Cash flows are included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities,
which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is classified as part of operating cash flows.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.

(U) OTHER MEMBER USE PROPERTIES
The Group owns or holds an occupancy right to a
number of holiday properties. The properties are held for
the primary purpose of member use. The properties are
accounted for on the same basis as the other property,
plant and equipment as set out in note 2(l).

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

Taxes

Mortality provision
Provision is made for the anticipated costs with respect
to the passing of qualifying members. In determining the
present value of the liability, mortality estimates and the
time value of money have been taken into account.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.
Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.
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4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND ACQUISITION
OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

REVENUE AND EXPENSES (cont.)
OTHER INCOME

Acquisition in 2016

356,142

569,956

Acquisition of a controlling interest in Betting.Club Pty Ltd.

Other revenue

1,109,215

1,055,103

On 20 August 2015, the entity acquired a controlling
interest in the voting shares of Betting.Club Pty Ltd.
Cash consideration of $794 was paid to the
non-controlling shareholders.

Total other income

1,465,357

1,625,059

129,271,769

121,890,932

The entity has elected to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at the proportionate share of its
interest in the acquiree’s identifiable net liabilities.

Costs attributable
36,724,666

37,237,892

Bars

8,086,392

8,455,279

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Fitness centers

4,977,185

6,011,813

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Betting.Club Pty Ltd as at the date of acquisition were:

Membership

668,705

797,649

2,913,693

2,942,826

Interest - financial institutions

(B) EXPENSES

Poker Machines

Admissions and raffles
Club Keno and Tab commissions

FAIR VALUE RECOGNISED
ON ACQUISITION ($)

Catering commissions and booking fees
Resort expenses

4,909,837

Depreciation and amortisation of
non-current assets

16,996,555

17,503,033

Total depreciation and amortisation
of non-current assets

16,996,555

12,345,937

586,899

525,131

1,356,361

1,487,114

5,773

84,372

1,959,638

1,659,403

Property, plant and equipment

212,016

Other debtors and prepayments

188,939

Cash and cash equivalents

411,626

(736,348)

Loans from related parties

(5,950,000)
(6,686,348)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value

(5,873,767)

Non-controlling interest measured at fair value

1,382,294

Net gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

4,492,267

Purchase consideration transferred

794

5. REVENUE AND EXPENSES
2015 ($)

(A) REVENUE
Poker machines

107,393,033

96,170,582

Bars

7,586,553

7,932,729

Fitness centers

4,514,958

6,220,236

Membership

386,042

638,708

Admissions and raffles

898,371

885,259

Internet café and kids amusements

103,048

98,529

Club Keno and tab commissions

527,740

546,281

Catering commissions and booking fees

4,770,869

6,515,427

Holiday cottages, lodges and apartments

712,086

665,942

Member loyalty and gift shop

398,145

592,180

515,567

-

127,806,412

120,265,873

Wagering revenue
TOTAL REVENUE

Included in costs attributable

Community support expenses
Sports ground expense
Sub clubs expense and grants
Bowling club green service and repairs
Donations

117,947

122,549

Senior citizens Christmas party

63,344

66,850

Carols by candlelight

36,699

35,818

1,445,599

1,021,894

5,572,260

5,003,131

Club services

8,903,701

8,398,189

Advertising and promotions

6,402,560

3,417,496

13,818,800

10,825,522

4,873,638

4,789,763

17,770,683

13,135,092

Betting costs

227,774

-

Betting taxes

124,901

-

Loss on disposal property

183,921

353,352

52,305,987

40,919,414

Children’s Christmas party

Sports

2016 ($)
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925,793

69,364,647

Total costs attributable

Trade creditors and accruals

976,437
5,368,898

Member loyalty and gift shop

LIABILITIES

865,176
7,218,382

65,785,575

ASSETS

812,581

855,786
5,213,813

General and administration expenses

Administration expenses and staff
on-costs
Repairs and maintenance
Property costs

6. INCOME TAX
(A) INCOME TAX BENEFIT

9. INVENTORIES
2016 ($)

2015 ($)

The major components of income tax benefits are:

Catering and bar

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

At cost

Deferred income tax credit

3,943

(6,840)

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income

3,943

(6,840)

525,564

1,681,122

(398,507)

(643,830)

(1,415,265)

(1,044,132)

1,292,151

-

3,943

(6,840)

Income tax expense prima facie

Other items (net)

At cost
Total inventory at cost

A reconciliation between tax benefit and the product of accounting profit
before income tax multiplied by the Group’s statutory tax rate 30%
(2015: 30%) is as follows:

Amount exempted from tax

2015 ($)

330,908

328,269

94,687

78,965

425,595

407,234

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

538,552

16,251,750

Merchandise

Deferred Income Tax

Tax losses not booked

2016 ($)

Income tax expense/(benefit)
attributable to ordinary activities

The Group has estimated tax losses of $1,328,358 (2015: $1,037,161).

10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Current
Held for trading investments

Held for trading investments include floating rate notes in banks, hybrid
securities and short-term deposits invested in either 11AM deposits or term
deposits. Term deposits have a maturity of up to 365 days.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Deferred Income Tax
Employee entitlements

151,533

155,476

Net deferred tax asset

151,533

155,476

Opening balance

155,476

162,316

(3,943)

(6,840)

151,533

155,476

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

Cost

37,238,419

37,238,419

Net carrying amount

37,238,419

37,238,419

Freehold land
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
Net deferred tax asset at the
end of the year

Cost

128,854,461

128,314,859

Accumulated depreciation

(62,924,901)

(49,344,383)

65,929,560

79,170,476

6,925,509

6,590,226

(1,482,673)

(1,183,211)

5,442,836

5,407,015

Net carrying amount

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash at bank and on hand

Building, improvements and other building

Leasehold improvements
Cost

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

17,383,706

7,361,755

Net carrying amount

7,361,755

Plant and equipment

17,383,706

Accumulated depreciation

Financing facilities available

Cost

112,950,093

105,098,955

At reporting date, the Group has a total financing facility of $226,200,000
(2015: $10,000,000). $11,829,991 facility has been used in the current year.
At reporting date, an amount of $214,370,009 was unused.

Accumulated depreciation

(79,207,462)

(76,486,434)

33,742,631

28,612,521

9,919,307

9,793,538

(2,978,061)

(2,647,976)

6,941,246

7,145,562

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2016 ($)

Net carrying amount
Member use properties
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

2015 ($)

Net carrying amount
Construction in progress

Current
Other debtors and prepayments

Cost

54,343,924

18,321,721

1,345,554

1,142,628

Net carrying amount

54,343,924

18,321,721

1,345,554

1,142,628

Total property, plant and equipment
350,231,713

305,557,718

30,000

2,450,000

Accumulated depreciation

(146,593,097)

(129,662,004)

30,000

2,450,000

Net carrying amount

203,638,616

175,895,714

Non-current
Other assets

Cost
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Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and
end of the year

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2016 ($)

2015 ($)

At cost

39,608,613

39,498,193

Net carrying amount

39,608,613

39,498,193

2016 ($)
Electronic gaming machine entitlement

Freehold land
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

37,238,419

Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

37,238,419

Building, improvements and other building
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

79,170,476

Additions

592,407

Disposals

(106,882)

Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

(13,726,441)
65,929,560

Leasehold improvements
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

5,407,015

Additions from business combination

116,476

Additions

162,698

Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

(243,353)
5,442,836

Plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount
Additions from business combination

28,612,521
96,183

Additions

8,563,957

Disposals

(833,354)

Depreciation charge for the year

(2,696,676)

Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

33,742,631

Member use properties

Additions
Depreciation charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

At cost

13,810,349

13,810,349

Net carrying amount

13,810,349

13,810,349

At cost

53,418,962

53,308,542

Net carrying amount

53,418,962

53,308,542

Total intangibles

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount at beginning and end of the year
Electronic gaming machine entitlement
Balance at the beginning of the year
At cost

39,498,193

Carrying amount - opening

39,498,193

Additions
Carrying amount - closing

110,420
39,608,613

Goodwill
Balance at the beginning of the year
At cost

13,810,349

Carrying amount - opening

13,810,349

Carrying amount - closing

13,810,349

Total intangibles
Balance at the beginning of the year
At cost

53,308,542

At cost - opening

53,308,542

Additions
At cost - closing

110,420
53,418,962

(b) Description of the Group’s intangible assets

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

Gaming machine licences at cost Goodwill

7,145,562

For the nature and description of the intangible assets please refer to the
descriptions in note 2(n) and 2(o).

125,769
(330,085)
6,941,246

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Construction in progress

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

14,221,745

8,684,235

2,000,000

-

16,221,745

8,684,235

Deferred revenue

864,611

770,943

Total deferred revenue

864,611

770,943

Deferred revenue

465,928

408,152

Total deferred revenue

465,928

408,152

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net carrying amount

18,321,721

Additions

36,022,203

Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

54,343,924

Additions from business combination

175,895,714
212,659

Additions

45,467,034

Disposals

(940,236)

Depreciation charge for the year

(16,996,555)

Balance at the end of the year - Net carrying amount

203,638,616
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Trade creditors and accrual
Other liabilities - related parties
Total trade and other payables

Total property, plant and equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year

Current

Non-current

Deferred revenue
The Group collects club membership and gym membership fees in advance.
At any point in time, the services for those membership fees have not yet been
provided and has been recorded as deferred revenue.

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

14. PROVISIONS
2016 ($)

2015 ($)

40,500

46,500

40,500

46,500

1,104,761

1,141,253

1,104,761

1,141,253

Current
Mortality payments

Non-current
Mortality payments

On 16 March 2016, the entity entered into an AU$152 million notional value
interest rate swap with Westpac to manage Mounties’ exposure to the potential
volatility of the benchmark interest rate risk on the floating debt facility. The
hedging strategy is to fix a corresponding proportion of the highly probable
interest payments associated with the variable funding of the loan using
an amortising interest rate swap. The interest rate swap is designated in a
hedging relationship for accounting purposes as a cash flow hedge and the
effectiveness of the hedge is assessed as 100%. The movement in derivative
financial liabilities represents the fair value movement of the interest rate swap
in FY16.

17. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS & BORROWINGS

Mortality payment
A provision for mortality payment is recognised for the expected costs
associated with the members eligible to receive the mortality payment. The
provision is based on the number of members entitled to receive the payment,
discounted for the time value of money.

MOVEMENTS IN PROVISION

(1,206,517)

Utilised/paid

(1,187,753)

Other adjustments

42,492

At 30 June 2016 (current and non-current)

(1,145,261)

11,829,991

-

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

223,425,274

217,814,694

3,279,313

5,610,580

226,704,587

223,425,274

Balance at beginning of the year

12,896,229

12,896,229

Balance at end of the year

12,896,229

12,896,229

Balance at beginning of the year

2,745,290

2,745,290

Balance at end of the year

2,745,290

2,745,290

-

-

Hedging reserve movement

(1,025,341)

-

Balance at end of the year

(1,025,341)

-

-

-

(2,622,962)

-

18. MEMBERS’ EQUITY

2016 ($)

Retained earnings
Balance at beginning of the year
Net profit attributable to members of Mt
Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd
Balance at end of the year

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES

Revaluation reserve

2015 ($)

Amalgamation reserve

Current
5,977,883

5,833,838

5,977,883

5,833,838

Hedging reserve

Non-current
703,955

1,021,385

1,104,761

1,141,253

Employee benefits and superannuation

Balance at beginning of the year

Minority interests

The aggregate employee benefit liabilities is comprised of:

Non-current provisions

-

Loan from Westpac

(34,236)

At 30 June 2015 (current and non-current)

Current provisions

11,829,991

Non-current

53,000

Other adjustments

Employee benefits

2015 ($)

MORTALITY ($)

At 1 July 2014 (current and non-current)

Employee benefits

2016 ($)

Balance at beginning of the year

5,977,883

5,833,838

703,955

1,021,385

Net loss attributable to minority
shareholders

6,681,838

6,855,223

Balance at end of the year

All employees are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. The
defined contribution superannuation plan provides for payment of benefits
accumulated. Certain employees contribute to a private fund at 5% of their
wages and salaries; the Group generally contributes at the same rate. The
Group also contributes to the defined contribution superannuation fund at the
rate of 9.5% (2015: 9.5%); these contributions are legally enforceable.

(2,622,962)

-

238,697,803

239,066,793

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve is used to record increases and decreases in the fair
value of Electronic Gaming Machine Entitlements to the extent that they offset
one another. There were no movements in their carrying values during the
current financial year and the previous financial year.
Amalgamation reserve
The amalgamation reserve represents the gain arising on the acquisition in 2013.
Hedging reserve
The hedge reserve represents the movements in the fair value of the interest
rate swap which has been designated as cash flow hedge.
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19. COMMITMENTS

(b) Remuneration committee
2016 ($)

2015 ($)

Capital expenditure commitments
Estimated capital expenditure contracted for at reporting
date but not provided for:
Payable not later than one year

51,378,515

10,506,337

20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Key management personnel
Details referring to KMP, including remuneration paid, are
included in note 21.

21. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES
Key management personnel
Key management personnel, being those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, include the Directors
and Senior Management.
Total compensation for key management personnel
including Directors and Senior Management for Mt
Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd during the
financial year are set out below:

Total remuneration

2016 ($)

2015 ($)

1,737,333

1,603,399

The Directors’ remuneration is of the nature of expense
reimbursements, and is capped at the amounts approved
each year by the members at the Annual General Meeting.
The remuneration of directors is all of the nature of short
term compensation; the directors are not entitled to post
retirement benefits or other long term benefits.
Senior Management are entitled to normal annual leave,
vesting sick leave, and long service leave (subject to
qualification) and superannuation benefits, they are not
entitled to any other long term benefits.
Compensation of management
(a) Compensation policy
The performance of the Group depends on the quality of
its directors and management staff. To prosper, the Group
must be able to attract, motivate and retain highly skilled
management staff. To this end, the Group embodies the
following principles in its compensation framework:
•

Provide competitive rewards to attract high calibre
executives

•

Establish appropriate market measures of salaries
and ensure that management salaries are
maintained at market value.
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Four (4) members of the Board of Directors, together with
the Employment Relations Manager and Chief Executive
Officer form the Remuneration Committee, and maintain
responsibility for reviewing compensation arrangements
for senior management personnel.
The Remuneration Committee assess the appropriateness
of the nature and amount of compensation of key
management personnel on a periodic basis by reference
to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum membership and Club
benefit from the retention of a high quality executive team.
(c) Compensation structure
In accordance with best practice corporate governance,
the Remuneration Committee use information obtained
from an external consultant in the form of a written report
detailing market levels of compensation for comparable
executive roles. The report is then presented to a meeting
of the Remuneration Committee who review executive
remuneration levels, and make recommendations to the
Board.
In consideration of the job market, state of the economy,
business location, type of organisation and business
performance, it has been resolved that the Group will
reward management personnel within the market range
relevant to the position that they hold, and that the market
will be checked every two years to ensure that this is
maintained.
Senior Management personnel are on employment
contracts which specify all conditions of employment
and remuneration details. These contracts are reviewed
at determined intervals in line with performance, salary
and market reviews.

22. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There have been no significant events occurring after
the reporting period which may affect either the Group’s
operations or results of those operations or the Group’s
state of affairs.

23. INFORMATION RELATING TO MT PRITCHARD &
DISTRICT COMMUNITY CLUB (PARENT ENTITY)
2016 ($)

2015 ($)

18,783,117

25,163,367

279,277,939

256,973,099

Current liabilities

19,616,651

15,335,516

Liabilities

34,746,627

17,906,306

Revaluation reserve

12,896,229

12,896,229

2,745,290

2,745,290

Employee benefits
Assets

Amalgamation reserve
Hedging reserve

(1,025,341)

-

229,771,089

223,425,274

Profit for the year

6,345,815

5,610,580

Total comprehensive income of the
Parent entity

5,320,474

5,610,580

Retained earnings

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of
Mt Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd, we state that:
In the opinion of the directors:
(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes of
the Group for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:
(i) Giving a true and fair view of the Group’s
financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date
(ii) Complying with Australian Accounting
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements
and Corporations Regulations 2001;
(b) There are reasonable grounds to believe that the
Club will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable.
On behalf of the Board,

KEVIN INGRAM
Director

JOHN DEAN
Director
Sydney, 28 September 2016
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AUDITORS’ DECLARATION
Ernst & Young
680 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au

Independent auditor's report to the members of Mt Pritchard & District
Community Club Ltd
Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Mt Pritchard & District Community Club Ltd, which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the
directors' declaration.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements
and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.
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Ernst & Young
680 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia
GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

Ernst & Young
680 George Street
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Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
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ey.com/au

Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
ey.com/au

Independent auditor's report to the members of Mt Pritchard & District
Community Club Ltd
Report on the financial report
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
We audit
believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
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opinion.

our audit opinion.
Independence

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a
In conducting
our audit
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have complied
copy
of which is included
in the
report. with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act

2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report.
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(189,469)

Profit / ( Loss) Bingo & Raffles
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-

Profit / ( Loss) Contracted Car Wash

68,759

Commissions

3,734,295

2,090,265

Advertising & Promotions

314,379

Child Care

Members Loyalty

374,407

4,978,265

MT PRITCHARD

49,042,010

Booking Office

Operations, Transport & Security

MEMBER & CLUB SERVICES

EXPENSES

TOTAL CLUB INCOME

874,990

36,363

Sports Activities

Other

331,972

Interest Received

SUNDRY INCOME

-

(282,662)

Profit / ( Loss) Memberships

Profit / ( Loss) External Functions

(620,340)

(56,473)

Profit / ( Loss) Functions & Entertainment

Profit / ( Loss) Fitness Centre

(427,418)

-

Profit / ( Loss) Resort Facilities

Profit / ( Loss) Catering

-

(765,543)

Profit / ( Loss) Nightclub

Profit / ( Loss) Bars

(13,322)

(158,019)

Profit / ( Loss) T.A.B.

Profit / ( Loss) Giftshop

(91,478)

50,334,651

MT PRITCHARD

Profit / ( Loss) Keno

Profit / ( Loss) Poker machines

FACILITIES PROFIT / ( LOSS )

INCOME

427,181

222,471

-

152,291

820,668

MEKONG

6,771,187

93,155

3,697

-

-

-

-

(300,906)

-

(40,455)

-

-

-

(155,800)

7,576

-

(46,574)

26,035

7,184,458

MEKONG

775,420

553,053

-

315,222

982,795

HARBORD

1,870,843

74,806

12,901

-

1,666

-

-

61,829

(791,382)

(836,935)

-

-

-

174,820

(80,042)

(96,725)

(79,157)

19,270

3,409,792

HARBORD

52,410

292,015

-

102,834

588,683

TRIGLAV

4,195,503

29,714

4,576

-

-

-

-

(104,508)

-

(32,614)

-

-

-

147,636

10,497

(49,363)

(30,434)

48,739

4,171,259

TRIGLAV

3,852

61,303

-

-

259,381

MANLY

643,826

18,310

4,442

-

-

-

-

10,010

-

33,042

-

-

-

224,671

-

(33,633)

(30,809)

37,787

380,004

MANLY

13,926

17,403

-

-

141,570

FAIRFIELD

94,868

6,715

919

109,070

-

-

-

(5,539)

-

(25,852)

-

-

-

(74,681)

-

(21,073)

(35,532)

11,715

129,125

FAIRFIELD

5,876

14,920

-

-

92,434

ITALIA

(60,909)

884

679

-

-

-

-

75,528

-

763

-

-

-

(50,939)

-

-

-

412

(88,236)

ITALIA

4,023,900

4,895,461

314,379

944,753

7,863,795

MOUNTIES GROUP

62,293,232

1,098,575

95,974

145,433

333,638

-

(282,662)

(883,926)

(847,855)

(1,329,469)

-

(264,096)

-

(499,836)

(75,292)

(390,263)

(380,525)

52,481

65,521,053

MOUNTIES GROUP

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
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(23,704)

1,282,476

2,504,770

Community Services

Community Donations

Sporting Sub Club Expenses

36,011,117

8,328,979

Depreciation Expense

E.B.I.T.D.A.R.D.

4,521,869

3,943

Tax & X Ord Items Expense

Donations Expenses

941

23,155,385

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Interest / Rental Expenses

25,886,625

5,963,629

34,568

TOTAL EXPENSES

TOTAL

Salaries & Wages On-Costs

501,904

2,476

Information Technology

Utilities

8,225

4,697,787

Depreciation Building & General

Human Resources

718,669

4,558,232

Management - Administration

ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE ETC.

TOTAL

-

36,699

Carols by Candlelight

Sporting Sub Club Grants

63,344

117,947

Childrens Christmas Party

Senior Citizens Christmas Party

576,700

Sports Area Expenses

COMMUNITY EXPENSES

15,364,764

3,556,516

Repairs & Maintenance

TOTAL

316,639

Gardening, Landscaping

5,010,027

909,921

236,433

-

123,378

3,740,295

3,030,892

966,524

181,241

40,630

53,111

1,797

315,331

374,414

236,433

-

1,211

235,222

-

-

-

-

-

1,827,935

205,323

-

(2,201,751)

6,762,155

370,884

-

53,735

(9,388,525)

11,259,367

7,606,806

90,793

413,635

31,524

149,352

6,090,990

830,512

370,884

-

64,617

335,196

(28,929)

-

-

-

-

3,281,678

600,824

54,364

2,823,186

183,015

161,758

-

-

2,478,413

1,717,091

362,357

77,820

53,048

28,953

3,401

18,818

180,317

161,758

-

57,414

104,344

-

-

-

-

-

1,192,975

146,647

10,387

166,110

179,701

-

-

8,000

(21,590)

665,417

167,177

-

42,423

9,516

-

95,063

20,175

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

498,240

110,619

63,083

(409,598)

182,758

(100,901)

-

16,344

(507,799)

602,667

224,504

10,938

33,780

10,228

-

143,710

25,847

8,169

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,169

369,994

118,402

78,694

(382,697)

258,464

178,688

-

-

(819,849)

758,940

306,791

7,009

26,745

15,730

-

247,465

9,842

178,688

-

174,713

2,400

-

-

-

-

1,575

273,461

128,100

32,131

33,247,131

17,133,129

5,368,731

3,943

209,654

10,531,675

51,761,557

22,783,377

891,212

1,117,175

1,385,491

1,052,398

11,609,165

6,727,935

5,514,163

-

2,802,725

1,959,638

(52,633)

36,699

63,344

117,947

586,443

23,464,017

4,866,430

555,299
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SCHEDULE OF LANDS
CORE PROPERTY

NON CORE PROPERTY

MOUNTIES SITE

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE

101 Meadows Road, Mt Pritchard

Volume 8261 Folio 233
Volume 9060 Folio 131
Folio Identifier 1/204779
Vol 10577 Fol 99
Folio Identifier 4/524205
Folio Identifier 21/536004
Folio Identifier 12/521803

Property at end of Lena Street Mt Pritchard
221568 Lot 200 DP 1015848 & Lot 1 DP 837474
Consolidation Lena Street (12, 14, 16, 18, 20, 21,
22, 23, 24, 25, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 and Lot 1 Lena)

2005/1090149

17 Lena Street Mt Pritchard

7/203051

89 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

1/206532

99 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

10/515019

115 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

3/210350

3 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

20/220028

8 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

14/220028

9 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

17/220028

12 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

16/220028

10 Cherry Street Mt Pritchard

28/220028

1 Speed Street Mt Pritchard

Auto Consol 14129-172

Property Young Street Mt Pritchard
Consolidated Property
(Lot 13 Lot 14 & Lot 18 Young St)
(formerly 29, 21 & 33 Young St)

101/ 1085221

11 Young Street Mt Pritchard

22/220028

1 Houston Place Mt Pritchard

7/231805

19 Young Street Mt Pritchard

13/235239

2 Houston Place Mt Pritchard

8/231805

121 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

2/513938

3 Houston Place Mt Pritchard

9/231805

123 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

1/513938

4 Houston Place Mt Pritchard

10/231805

9 Lena Street Mt Pritchard

11/203051

5 Houston Place Mt Pritchard

11/231805

7 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

18/220028

4 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard

2/231805

10 Leo Street Mt Pritchard

15/220028

6 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard

3/231805
22/231805

80 Evans Street Freshwater
Consolidated Lots

Folio ID 100 / 1136132

8 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard
10 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard

4/231805

80 Evans St Freshwater

12/1197725

4a Lumsdaine Drive Freshwater

2/579837

Waves Site 23 Oliver Street Freshwater

1/517620

2 Harbord Street Sussex Inlet

116/521290

253 River Road Sussex Inlet

170/21038

153/6-8 Stuart Street Tweed Heads

153/SP77177

191/6-8 Stuart Street Tweed Heads

191/SP 77177

Kooloora Site (NPWS Lease) Perisher Valley

Register Deed Book 752 / 4500

12 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard

5/231805

14 Kewin Avenue Mt Pritchard

6/231805

35 Young St Mt Pritchard

12/231805

254 Humphries Road Mt Pritchard

1/231805

113 Meadows Road Mt Pritchard

31/201418

Club Italia Certificate of Land titles

Torrens Title ref
2/805378
P6MP-RP-TNWZ

Club Italia Certificate of Land titles

Torrens Title ref
C/421416
4NMH-76CS43

Club Italia Certificate of Land titles

Torrens Title ref
3/805378
JHZ5-S7-YN7H

Italian Forum (Club Italia) Certificate of Land title (note
original title in EA filing cabinet in the name of Club
Italia / Italian Forum Certificate land title)

Torrens Title ref
12/1005187
5KSP-R4-CJPS

Mekong Certificate Land Title

10/SP23152

Mekong Certificate Land Title

11/SP23152

Triglav Certificate Land Title

1/1079685
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KEEP IN TOUCH
MOUNTIES GROUP

101 Meadows Road, Mt Pritchard NSW 2170
Locked Bag 1, Wetherill Park NSW 2164
(02) 9822 3555
info@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.mountiesgroup.com.au

MOUNTIES

101 Meadows Road
Mt Pritchard NSW 2170
(02) 9822 3555
info@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.mounties.com.au

MOUNTIES BOWLING CLUB

Cnr Ulverstone & Lawson Streets
Fairfield NSW 2165
Ph: (02) 9726 9692
info@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.mountiesbowlingclub.com.au

HARBORD DIGGERS

80 Evans Street
Freshwater NSW 2096
(02) 9938 1444
harbordinfo@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.harborddiggers.com.au

MANLY BOWLING CLUB

Raglan Street
Manly NSW 2095
(02) 9938 7657
harbordinfo@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.manlybowlingclub.com.au

CLUB ITALIA

Cnr of Hollywood Drive & Wharf Road
Lansvale NSW 2166
(02) 9726 4511
www.clubitaliamounties.com.au

TRIGLAV

80-84 Brisbane Road,
St Johns Park NSW 2176
(02) 9426 1000
triglav@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.triglav.com.au

MEKONG

1st Floor, 117 John Street,
Cabramatta NSW 2166
(02) 9725 8500
mekonginfo@mountiesgroup.com.au
www.mekongmounties.com.au
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IT’S
OUR
MISSION
TO CREATE
DESTINATIONS
OF CHOICE
FOR THE
COMMUNITY
TO TRUST
AND ENJOY
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